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supplemented by a decrease in technology access fees incurred in fiscal year 2005 supporting 
the production of monoclonal antibodies for Cotara®.  

o    Vascular Targeting Agents (“VTAs”) and Anti-Angiogenesis Agents – The decrease in VTA 
and Anti-Angiogenesis Agents program expenses of $922,000 during the year ended April 
30, 2006 compared to the prior year is primarily due to a decrease in intellectual property 
access fees and sponsored research fees as our outside researchers were focused on the 
development of our Anti-PS Immunotherapeutics technology platform. 

o    Vasopermeation Enhancements Agents (“VEAs”) – The decrease in VEA program expenses 
of $211,000 during the year ended April 30, 2006 compared to the prior year is primarily due 
to a decrease in sponsored research fees and technology license fees combined with a 
decrease in antibody development fees regarding expenses incurred in fiscal year 2005. In 
January 2005, we entered into an agreement with Merck KGaA of Darmstadt, Germany, that 
gave us access to Merck's technology and expertise in protein expression to advance the 
development of our VEA technology and other platform technologies.  We are currently 
developing a clinical candidate under our VEA technology utilizing Merck’s expertise in 
protein expression. 

Looking beyond the next twelve months, it is extremely difficult for us to reasonably estimate all 
future research and development costs associated with each of our technologies due to the number of 
unknowns and uncertainties associated with pre-clinical and clinical trial development.  These unknown 
variables and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: 

the uncertainty of our capital resources to fund research, development and clinical studies beyond 
fiscal year 2008;  

the uncertainty of future costs associated with our pre-clinical candidates, including Vascular 
Targeting Agents, Anti-Angiogenesis Agents, and Vasopermeation Enhancement Agents, which 
costs are dependent on the success of pre-clinical development.  We are uncertain whether or not 
these product candidates will be successful and we are uncertain whether or not we will incur any 
additional costs beyond pre-clinical development;  

the uncertainty of future clinical trial results;  
the uncertainty of the ultimate number of patients to be treated in any current or future clinical 
trial;

the uncertainty of the Food and Drug Administration allowing our studies to move forward from 
Phase I clinical studies to Phase II and Phase III clinical studies;

the uncertainty of the rate at which patients are enrolled into any current or future study.  Any 
delays in clinical trials could significantly increase the cost of the study and would extend the 
estimated completion dates; 

the uncertainty of terms related to potential future partnering or licensing arrangements; and 
the uncertainty of protocol changes and modifications in the design of our clinical trial studies, 
which may increase or decrease our future costs. 

We or our potential partners will need to do additional development and clinical testing prior to 
seeking any regulatory approval for commercialization of our product candidates as all of our products 
are in discovery, pre-clinical or clinical development.  Testing, manufacturing, commercialization, 
advertising, promotion, exporting and marketing, among other things, of our proposed products are 
subject to extensive regulation by governmental authorities in the United States and other countries.  The 
testing and approval process requires substantial time, effort and financial resources, and we cannot 
guarantee that any approval will be granted on a timely basis, if at all.  Companies in the pharmaceutical 
and biotechnology industries have suffered significant setbacks in conducting advanced human clinical 
trials, even after obtaining promising results in earlier trials.  Furthermore, the United States Food and 



40

Drug Administration may suspend clinical trials at any time on various grounds, including a finding that 
the subjects or patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.  Even if regulatory approval of a 
product is granted, such approval may entail limitations on the indicated uses for which it may be 
marketed.  Accordingly, we or our potential partners may experience difficulties and delays in obtaining 
necessary governmental clearances and approvals to market our products, and we or our potential partners 
may not be able to obtain all necessary governmental clearances and approvals to market our products. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 

Year Ended April 30, 2007 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2006:  

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of payroll and related expenses, 
director fees, legal and accounting fees, stock-based compensation expense, investor and public relation 
fees, insurance, and other expenses relating to the general management, administration, and business 
development activities of the Company. 

The decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses of $118,000 during the year ended 
April 30, 2007 compared to the prior year is primarily due to decreases in corporate legal fees, investor 
and public relation fees, and payroll and related expenses.  Corporate legal fees decreased $146,000 from 
$563,000 in fiscal year 2006 to $417,000 in fiscal year 2007 primarily due to corporate legal fees incurred 
in the prior year associated with a legal settlement related to certain technology agreements with a 
university that was reached in March 2006.  Investor and public relation fees decreased $138,000 from 
$415,000 in fiscal year 2006 to $277,000 in fiscal year 2007 primarily due to consolidating the 
outsourcing of our investor and public relation activities.  Payroll and related expenses remained in line 
with the prior year and decreased slightly from $2,874,000 in fiscal year 2006 compared to $2,837,000 in 
fiscal year 2007.  These decreases in selling, general and administrative expenses were offset with an 
increase in non-cash stock-based compensation expense of $156,000 from $379,000 in fiscal year 2006 to 
$535,000 in fiscal year 2007 due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R on May 1, 2006 and the issuance of 
non-cash stock bonuses during the current year associated with the achievement of pre-determined 
milestones as set forth in the Company’s February 2006 Stock Bonus Plan, which were offset by a 
decrease in non-cash stock-based compensation expenses associated with non-employee consultants.  In 
addition, we incurred incremental increases in other general corporate related expenses primarily 
associated with facility related expenses and directors and officers insurance fees. 

Year Ended April 30, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2005:  

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses of $1,466,000 during the year ended 
April 30, 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005 is primarily due to an increase in payroll and related 
expenses of $517,000 from $2,357,000 in fiscal year 2005 to $2,874,000 in fiscal year 2006 primarily due 
to an increase in headcount across most corporate functions to support our increased operations, which 
were offset by a decrease in consulting fees associated with the prior year business development efforts of 
the Company.  During fiscal year 2006, we hired a Vice President of Business Development whose 
responsibilities include those previously performed by outside consultants.  The fiscal year 2006 increase 
is also due to an increase in (i) stock based compensation expense of $230,000 from $110,000 in fiscal 
year 2005 to $340,000 in fiscal year 2006 associated with the amortization of the fair value of options and 
warrants provided to non-employee consultants for business development and general corporate services, 
(ii) investor and public relation fees of $167,000 from $248,000 in fiscal year 2005 to $415,000 in fiscal 
year 2006 primarily due to services provided by public relation firms assisting the Company with its 
investor and public relations activities, whose services were not utilized in fiscal year 2005, (iii) travel 
and related expenses of $141,000 from $243,000 in fiscal year 2005 to $384,000 in fiscal year 2006 
primarily associated with our participation in several investor conferences and non-deal marketing road 
shows during fiscal year 2006 combined with an increase in travel associated with business development 
and other corporate activities, and (iv) board of director fees of $137,000 from $276,000 in fiscal year 
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2005 to $413,000 in fiscal year 2006 primarily due to an increase in the number of non-employee 
directors combined with an increase in the number of Company Board meetings.  These increases were 
supplemented with increases in other general corporate matters primarily associated with an incremental 
increase in corporate legal fees and facility expenses combined with fees associated with the adoption of 
the Company’s Stockholder Rights Agreement in March 2006.    

Recovery of Note Receivable 

Year Ended April 30, 2007 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2006 and April 30, 2005

During fiscal year 2006, we recovered a previously fully reserved note receivable in the amount 
of $1,229,000 which amount did not repeat in either fiscal year 2007 and fiscal year 2005 as further 
discussed in Note 4, “Recovery of Note Receivable” to the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 

Interest and Other Income 

Year Ended April 30, 2007 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2006

The increase in interest and other income of $314,000 during the year ended April 30, 2007 
compared to the prior year is due to a $556,000 increase in interest income as a result of a higher average 
cash balance on hand and higher prevailing interest rates during the current year compared to the prior 
year offset with a net decrease in other income of $242,000.  The net decrease in other income is 
primarily due to $363,000 of other income recorded during the prior year in connection with a legal 
settlement related to certain technology agreements with a university, which amount was offset by the 
sale of a trademark name during the current year in the amount of $130,000. 

Year Ended April 30, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2005

The increase in interest and other income of $581,000 during the year ended April 30, 2006 
compared to fiscal year 2005 is due to a $212,000 increase in interest income as a result of a higher 
average cash balance on hand and higher prevailing interest rates during the current year compared to the 
prior year combined with a $369,000 increase in other income, which is primarily due to $363,000 of 
other income recorded during the quarter ended April 30, 2006 in connection with a legal settlement 
related to certain technology agreements with a university. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

The methods, estimates and judgments we use in applying our most critical accounting policies 
have a significant impact on the results we report in our consolidated financial statements. We evaluate 
our estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis.  We base our estimates on historical experience and on 
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Our experience and assumptions 
form the basis for our judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources.  Actual results may vary from what we anticipate and different assumptions 
or estimates about the future could change our reported results. We believe the following accounting 
policies are the most critical to us, in that they are important to the portrayal of our financial statements 
and they require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments in the preparation of our 
consolidated financial statements:   
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Revenues 

We recognize revenues pursuant to the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB No. 
104”), Revenue Recognition.  In accordance with SAB No. 104, revenue is generally realized or realizable 
and earned when (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services 
have been rendered, (iii) the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectibility is 
reasonably assured.     

 In addition, we comply with Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Emerging Issues Task 
Force No. 00-21 (“EITF 00-21”), Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.  In accordance with 
EITF 00-21, we recognize revenue for delivered elements only when the delivered element has stand-
alone value and we have objective and reliable evidence of fair value for each undelivered element.  If the 
fair value of any undelivered element included in a multiple element arrangement cannot be objectively 
determined, revenue is deferred until all elements are delivered and services have been performed, or until 
fair value can objectively be determined for any remaining undelivered elements. 

 Revenues associated with licensing agreements primarily consist of nonrefundable up-front 
license fees and milestone payments.  Revenues under licensing agreements are recognized based on the 
performance requirements of the agreement.  Nonrefundable up-front license fees received under license 
agreements, whereby continued performance or future obligation are considered inconsequential to the 
relevant licensed technology, are generally recognized as revenue upon delivery of the technology.    
Nonrefundable up-front license fees, whereby we have an ongoing involvement or performance 
obligations, are generally recorded as deferred revenue and generally recognized as revenue over the term 
of the performance obligation or relevant agreement.  Milestone payments are generally recognized as 
revenue upon completion of the milestone assuming there are no other continuing obligations.  Under 
some license agreements, the obligation period may not be contractually defined.  Under these 
circumstances, we must exercise judgment in estimating the period of time over which certain 
deliverables will be provided to enable the licensee to practice the license. 

 Contract manufacturing revenues are generally recognized once the service has been provided 
and/or upon shipment of the product to the customer.  We also record a provision for estimated contract 
losses, if any, in the period in which they are determined.  
   
 In July 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) released Issue 99-19 (“EITF 99-19”), 
Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.  EITF 99-19 summarized the EITF’s 
views on when revenue should be recorded at the gross amount billed to a customer because it has earned 
revenue from the sale of goods or services, or the net amount retained (the amount billed to the customer 
less the amount paid to a supplier) because it has earned a fee or commission.  In addition, the EITF 
released Issue 00-10 (“EITF 00-10”), Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs, and Issue 
01-14 (“EITF 01-14”), Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for “Out-of-
Pocket” Expenses Incurred.  EITF 00-10 summarized the EITF’s views on how the seller of goods should 
classify in the income statement amounts billed to a customer for shipping and handling and the costs 
associated with shipping and handling.  EITF 01-14 summarized the EITF’s views on when the 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses should be characterized as revenue or as a reduction of 
expenses incurred.  Our revenue recognition policies are in compliance with EITF 99-19, EITF 00-10 and 
EITF 01-14 whereby we record revenue for the gross amount billed to customers (the cost of raw 
materials, supplies and shipping, plus the related handling mark-up fee) and we record the cost of the 
amounts billed as cost of sales as we act as a principal in these transactions.      
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Stock-based Compensation Expense   

Prior to May 1, 2006, we accounted for our equity compensation plans in accordance with 
Accounting Principles Board No. 25 (“APB No. 25”), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and 
Related Interpretations, as permitted by Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123”), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.
Accordingly, no compensation expense was recognized in our financial statements related to stock option 
grants, as all options granted under our equity compensation plans had an exercise price at least equal to 
the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the grant date.  Effective May 1, 2006, we 
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R 
(“SFAS No. 123R”), Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004), using the modified-prospective method.  
Under the modified-prospective method, stock-based compensation cost recognized beginning May 1, 
2006 includes:  (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as 
of May 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of 
SFAS No. 123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted on or subsequent to May 
1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 
123R.  Results for prior periods have not been restated. 

 The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model 
and are amortized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of 
the awards, which is generally the vesting period (typically 4 years).  Use of a valuation model requires us 
to make certain estimates and assumptions with respect to selected model inputs.  Expected volatility is 
based on daily historical volatility of our stock covering the estimated expected term.  The expected term 
of options granted is based on the expected time to exercise using the “simplified” method allowable 
under the Security and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.  The risk-free interest 
rate is based on U.S. Treasury notes with terms within the contractual life of the option at the time of 
grant.   In addition, SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if 
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.   

 Our loss from operations for the fiscal year April 30, 2007 included stock-based compensation 
expense of $964,000.   As of April 30, 2007, the total estimated unrecognized compensation cost related to 
non-vested stock options was $1,764,000, which amount is expected to be recognized over a weighted 
average period of 2.94 years. 

 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  We continually monitor our allowance for doubtful accounts 
for all receivables.  A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realization of 
these receivables and we estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based on these factors at that point 
in time. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

 As of April 30, 2007, we had $16,044,000 in cash and cash equivalents compared to $17,182,000 
at April 30, 2006.  On June 28, 2007, we raised an additional $20,900,000 in net proceeds under a 
Securities Purchase Agreement with several institutional investors.  As of June 30, 2007, we had 
approximately $32,452,000 in cash and cash equivalents including the net proceeds received under the 
June 28, 2007 Securities Purchase Agreement.  Although we have sufficient cash on hand to meet our 
planned obligations through at least fiscal year 2008 based on our current projections, our development 
efforts are highly dependent on our ability to raise additional capital to support our future operations.  

 We have expended substantial funds on the development of our product candidates and we have 
incurred negative cash flows from operations for the majority of our years since inception.  Since 
inception, we have financed our operations primarily through the sale of our common stock and issuance 
of convertible debt, which has been supplemented with payments received from various licensing 
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collaborations and through the revenues generated by Avid.  We expect negative cash flows from 
operations to continue until we are able to generate sufficient revenue from the contract manufacturing 
services provided by Avid and/or from the sale and/or licensing of our products under development.   

Revenues earned by Avid during fiscal years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to 
$3,492,000, $3,005,000 and $4,684,000, respectively.  We expect that Avid will continue to generate 
revenues which should partially offset our consolidated cash flows used in operations, although we expect 
those near term revenues will be insufficient to cover total anticipated cash flows used in operations.  In 
addition, revenues from the sale and/or licensing of our products under development are always uncertain.  
Therefore, our ability to continue our clinical trials and development efforts is highly dependent on the 
amount of cash and cash equivalents on hand combined with our ability to raise additional capital to 
support our future operations beyond fiscal year 2008. 

We may raise additional capital through the sale of shares of our common stock, which as of June 
30, 2007, we have approximately 5,031,000 shares available for possible future registered transactions 
under two separate registration statements.  In addition, during January 2007, we filed a separate 
registration statement on Form S-3, File Number 333-139975, which allows us to issue, from time to 
time, in one or more offerings, shares of our common stock for remaining proceeds of up to $7,500,000.  
However, given uncertain market conditions and the volatility of our stock price and trading volume, we 
may not be able to sell our securities at prices or on terms that are favorable to us, if at all.   

In addition to equity financing, we actively explore various other sources of funding, including 
possible debt financing and leveraging our many assets, including our intellectual property portfolio.  Our 
broad intellectual property portfolio allows us to develop products internally while at the same time we 
are able to out-license certain areas of the technology which would not interfere with our internal product 
development efforts.   

There can be no assurances that we will be successful in raising sufficient capital on terms 
acceptable to us, or at all, or that sufficient additional revenues will be generated from Avid or under 
potential licensing agreements to complete the research, development, and clinical testing of our product 
candidates beyond fiscal year 2008.

  Significant components of the changes in cash flows from operating, investing, and financing 
activities for the year ended April 30, 2007 compared to the prior year are as follows: 

Cash Used In Operating Activities.  Cash used in operating activities is primarily driven by 
changes in our net loss.  However, cash used in operating activities generally differs from our reported net 
loss as a result of non-cash operating expenses or differences in the timing of cash flows as reflected in 
the changes in operating assets and liabilities.  During the year ended April 30, 2007, cash used in 
operating activities increased $1,522,000 to $18,479,000 compared to $16,957,000 for the year ended 
April 30, 2006.  The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily related to an increase of 
$2,315,000 in net cash used in operating activities before considering changes in operating assets and 
liabilities.  This increase was primarily due to an increase in research and development expenses offset by 
a decrease in selling, general and administrative expenses and an increase in contract manufacturing 
revenue.  This increase in cash used in operating activities before changes in operating assets and 
liabilities was offset by a net change in operating assets and payment or reduction of liabilities in the 
aggregate amount of $793,000.       
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The changes in operating activities as a result of non-cash operating expenses or differences in 
the timing of cash flows as reflected in the changes in operating assets and liabilities are as follows: 

 Year Ended April 30, 
 2007  2006 
Net loss, as reported $ (20,796,000) $ (17,061,000)
Less non-cash operating expenses: 
 Depreciation and amortization 
 Stock-based compensation and common  

stock issued under stock bonus plan            
 Amortization of expenses paid in shares of 

common stock 
 Loss (gain) on sale of property 
   Recovery of note receivable 

 475,000 

 1,324,000

 391,000 
1,000 
-

 415,000 

 543,000 

 1,048,000 
(6,000)

(1,229,000)
Net cash used in operating activities before 

changes in operating assets and liabilities $ (18,605,000) $ (16,290,000)

Net change in operating assets and liabilities $   126,000 $ (667,000)

Net cash used in operating activities $ (18,479,000) $ (16,957,000)

Cash (Used In) Provided By Investing Activities.  Net cash used in investing activities amount to 
$80,000 for the year ended April 30, 2007 compared to net cash provided by investing activities of 
$440,000 during the same prior year period.  This decrease in net cash provided by investing activities of 
$520,000 was primarily due to the recovery of a note receivable in the amount of $1,229,000 during the 
prior year offset by a current year decrease of $398,000 in property acquisitions and a $311,000 decrease 
in other assets primarily related to security deposits paid in the prior year to GE Capital Corporation on 
notes payable and prior year installment payments made on certain laboratory equipment.   

Cash Provided By Financing Activities.  Net cash provided by financing activities decreased 
$6,462,000 to $17,421,000 for the year ended April 30, 2007 compared to net cash provided of 
$23,883,000 for the same prior year period.  Cash provided by financing activities during fiscal year 2007 
was primarily due to proceeds received under a Security Purchase Agreement whereby we sold and issued 
a total of 9,285,714 shares of our common stock in exchange for aggregate net proceeds of $12,970,000, 
which was supplemented with net proceeds of $4,895,000 from the exercise of stock options and 
warrants.  Cash provided by financing activities during fiscal year 2006 was primarily due to net proceeds 
received from the sale of our common stock under various security purchase agreements in the amount of 
$22,894,000 supplemented with net proceeds of $733,000 from this exercise of stock options and 
warrants and $566,000 received from the financing of laboratory equipment with GE Capital Corporation. 

Contractual Obligations 

Contractual obligations represent future cash commitments and liabilities under agreements with 
third parties, and exclude contingent liabilities for which we cannot reasonably predict future payments.  
The following chart represents our contractual obligations as of April 30, 2007, aggregated by type: 
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Total < 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years

Operating leases, net (1)  $           8,945  $             815  $         2,394  $         1,654  $             4,082 
Notes payable (2)                  520                 398                122                    -                         - 
Capital lease obligation (3)                    51                   19                  32                    -                         - 
Other long-term liabilities - 
minimum license obligations (4)                  100                 100                    -                    -                         - 

Total contractual obligations  $           9,616  $          1,332  $         2,548  $         1,654  $             4,082 

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

______________
(1) Represents our (i) facility operating lease in Tustin, California under a non-cancelable lease agreement, (ii) facility 

operating lease in Houston, Texas, which has an original three year lease term, and (iii) various office equipment 
leases, which generally have five year lease terms.   

(2) Represents our note payable agreements entered into with General Electric Capital Corporation during fiscal years 
2006 and 2005 to finance laboratory equipment.  Amounts include principal and interest. 

(3) Represents our capital lease agreement to finance certain office equipment.  Amounts include principal and 
interest. 

(4) Represents licensing agreements we periodically enter into with third parties to obtain exclusive or non-exclusive 
licenses for certain technologies.  The terms of certain of these agreements require us to pay future milestone 
payments based on product development success.  We anticipate we may make milestone payments in the amount 
of $100,000 during fiscal year 2008 under in-licensing agreements pertaining to our bavituximab clinical trials.  
Other milestones fees under these and other licensing agreements cannot be predicted due to the uncertainty of 
future clinical trial results and development milestones and therefore, cannot be reasonably predicted or estimated 
at the present time.    

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

  In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation 
No. 48 (“FIN 48”), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement 
No. 109, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement 
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 will 
be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.  We adopted FIN 48 on May 1, 2007 and 
are currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48, which we believe will not have a significant impact on our 
consolidated financial statements. 

 In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 
(“SFAS No. 157”), Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 
No. 157 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we would be 
required to implement no later than May 1, 2008.   We have not yet evaluated the potential impact of 
adopting SFAS No. 157 on our consolidated financial statements. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 
(“SFAS No. 159”), The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an 
amendment of FASB statement No. 115 . SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many 
financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.  If the fair value method is selected, a business 
entity shall report unrealized gains and losses on elected items in earnings at each subsequent reporting 
date.  The standard also establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate 
comparisons between companies that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets 
and liabilities.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we 
would be required to implement no later than May 1, 2008.  We have not yet evaluated the potential 
impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 on our consolidated financial statements. 
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ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET 
RISK

Changes in United States interest rates would affect the interest earned on our cash and cash 
equivalents.  Based on our overall interest rate exposure at April 30, 2007, a near-term change in interest 
rates, based on historical movements, would not materially affect the fair value of interest rate sensitive 
instruments.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statements included in this Report at pages F-1 through   F-30. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.  The term “disclosure controls and 
procedures” (defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange 
Act”) refers to the controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that 
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act is 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods. Under the supervision 
and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer, we have conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of April 30, 2007.  Based on this evaluation, our president and 
chief executive officer and our chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective as of April 30, 2007 to ensure the timely disclosure of required information in 
our Securities and Exchange Commission filings.  

 Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements.  In addition, the design of any system of control is based upon certain assumptions about 
the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its 
stated goals under all future events, no matter how remote.  Accordingly, even effective internal control 
over financial reporting can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.  

(b)  Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.  Management’s Report 
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, which appears on the following page, is incorporated 
herein by this reference.  Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over 
financial reporting as of April 30, 2007 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent 
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which appears on page 49 of this Annual Report, 
and which is incorporated herein by this reference.  

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.   There have been no changes in our 
internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended April 30, 2007 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over 
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 
MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over financial reporting and for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) 
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles.  

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is supported by written policies and procedures that:  

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the Company’s assets; 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of the Company’s management and directors; and 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements.  Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements, management of 
the Company has undertaken an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“the COSO Framework”).  
Management’s assessment included an evaluation of the design of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting.  

Based on this assessment, management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting was effective as of April 30, 2007.  

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the company’s 
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an attestation 
report on management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting which appears on the following 
page.  

                  
By:   /s/STEVEN W. KING    By:   /s/PAUL J. LYTLE     
   Steven W. King,        Paul J. Lytle     

President and Chief 
Executive Officer 

    Chief Financial Officer 

July 9, 2007 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal 
Control Over Financial Reporting included in Item 9A, that Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) 
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2007, based on criteria established 
in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s management is responsible for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's 
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our 
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating 
management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management's assessment that Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the 
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, 
effective internal control over financial reporting as of April 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of April 30, 2007 and 
2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended April 30, 2007 and our report dated July 9, 2007 expressed an unqualified 
opinion thereon.  

  /s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Orange County, California 
July 9, 2007  
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item regarding our directors, executive officers and committees 
of our board of directors is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the captions 
“Election of Directors” and “Executive Compensation and Related Matters” in our 2007 Definitive Proxy 
Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended April 30, 2007 (the “2007 
Definitive Proxy Statement”).   

 Information required by this Item regarding Section 16(a) reporting compliance is incorporated 
by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting 
Compliance” in our 2007 Proxy Statement.   

 Information required by this Item regarding our code of ethics is incorporated by reference to the 
information set forth under the caption “Corporate Governance” in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 
10-K.

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

 The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth 
under the caption “Executive Compensation and Related Matters” in our 2007 Definitive Proxy Statement 
to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended April 30, 2007. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

 The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth 
under the caption “Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers and Certain Benefical 
Owners” in our 2007 Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal 
year ended April 30, 2007. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND 
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

 The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth 
under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Compensation Committee 
Interlocks and Insider Participation” in our 2007 Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days 
after the end of our fiscal year ended April 30, 2007.  

ITEM 14.     PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

 The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth 
under the caption “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees” in our 2007 Definitive Proxy 
Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended April 30, 2007.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) (1)  Consolidated Financial Statements

Index to consolidated financial statements: 

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public  F-1 
Accounting Firm   

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of  F-2 
April 30, 2007 and 2006 

Consolidated Statements of Operations F-4 
for each of the three years in the period 
ended April 30, 2007 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' F-5 
Equity for each of the three years in the 
period ended April 30, 2007 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-6  
for each of the three years in the period 
ended April 30, 2007 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  F-8 

 (2)  Financial Statement Schedules

  The following schedule is filed as part of this Form 10-K: 

  Schedule II- Valuation of Qualifying Accounts  
for each of the three years in the period ended April 30, 2007 F-30 

    
All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are 
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted. 
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(3)  Exhibits

Exhibit 
Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Techniclone Corporation, a Delaware corporation 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the Company’s 1996 Proxy Statement as 
filed with the Commission on or about August 20, 1996). 

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (formerly 
Techniclone Corporation), a Delaware corporation (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
October 31, 2003). 

3.3 Certificate of Designation of 5% Adjustable Convertible Class C Preferred Stock as 
filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on April 23, 1997.  (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 3.1 contained in Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as 
filed with the Commission on or about May 12, 1997). 

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Techniclone 
Corporation to effect the name change to Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation.  (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 contained in 
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 2001).   

3.5 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Peregrine 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to increase the number of authorized shares of the Company’s 
common stock to two hundred million shares (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
3.5 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 
2003).

3.6 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Peregrine 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to increase the number of authorized shares of the Company’s 
common stock to two hundred fifty million shares (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 3.6 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
October 31, 2005). 

3.7 Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series D 
Participating Preferred Stock of the Registrant, as filed with the Secretary of State of 
the State of Delaware on March 16, 2006.  (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on March 
17, 2006). 

4.1 Form of Certificate for Common Stock (Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of 
the same number contained in Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
year end April 30, 1988). 

4.13 Form of Stock Purchase Warrant to be issued to the Equity Line Subscribers 
pursuant to the Regulation D Common Stock Equity Subscription Agreement 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 contained in Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on or about June 29, 1998). 

4.16 Form of Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement by and between Registrant, 
Director and certain consultants dated December 22, 1999 (Incorporated by 
reference to the exhibit contained in Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-
3 (File No. 333-40716)).* 
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Exhibit 
Number Description                                 

4.17 Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan 
(Incorporated by reference to the exhibit contained in Registrant’s Registration 
Statement in Form S-8 (File No. 333-106385)).* 

4.18 Form of 2002 Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated by reference to 
the exhibit contained in Registrant’s Registration Statement in Form S-8 (File No. 
333-106385)).* 

4.19 Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2006, between the 
Company and Integrity Stock Transfer, Inc., including the Certificate of 
Designation, the form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of Rights attached 
thereto as Exhibits A, B and C, respectively (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
4.19 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on 
March 17, 2006). 

10.40 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to the exhibit contained in 
Registrant's Registration Statement in form S-8 (File No. 333-17513)).* 

10.41 Stock Exchange Agreement dated as of January 15, 1997 among the stockholders of 
Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 
1997).

10.42 First Amendment to Stock Exchange Agreement among the Stockholders of 
Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Registrant (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2.1 contained in Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the 
Commission on or about May 12, 1997). 

10.43 Termination and Transfer Agreement dated as of November 14, 1997 by and 
between Registrant and Alpha Therapeutic Corporation (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.1 contained in Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with 
the commission on or about November 24, 1997). 

10.47 Real Estate Purchase Agreement by and between Techniclone Corporation and 
14282 Franklin Avenue Associates, LLC dated December 24, 1998 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.47 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended January 31, 1999). 

10.48 Lease and Agreement of Lease between TNCA, LLC, as Landlord, and Techniclone 
Corporation, as Tenant, dated as of December 24, 1998 (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.48 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended January 31, 1999). 

10.49 Promissory Note dated as of December 24, 1998 between  Techniclone Corporation 
(Payee) and TNCA Holding, LLC (Maker) for $1,925,000 (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.49 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended January 31, 1999). 

10.50 Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of December 24, 1998 for $1,925,000 
Promissory Note between Grantors and Techniclone Corporation (Secured Party) 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 1999). 
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Exhibit 
Number Description

10.56 License Agreement dated as of March 8, 1999 by and between Registrant and 
Schering A.G. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to Registrant's Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 1999).** 

10.57 Patent License Agreement dated October 8, 1998 between Registrant and the Board of 
Regents of the University of Texas System for patents related to Targeting the 
Vasculature of Solid Tumors (Vascular Targeting Agent patents) (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.57 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended July 31, 1999).

10.58 Patent License Agreement dated October 8, 1998 between Registrant and the Board of 
Regents of the University of Texas System for patents related to the Coagulation of the 
Tumor Vasculature (Vascular Targeting Agent patents) (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.58 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
July 31, 1999).

10.59 License Agreement between Northwestern University and Registrant dated August 4, 
1999 covering the LYM-1 and LYM-2 antibodies (Oncolym) (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.59 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended July 31, 1999).

10.67 Warrant to purchase 750,000 shares of Common Stock of Registrant issued to Swartz 
Private Equity, LLC dated November 19, 1999 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.67 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 
31, 2000).

10.73 Common Stock Purchase Agreement to purchase up to 6,000,000 shares of 
Common Stock of Registrant issued to ZLP Master Fund, LTD, ZLP Master 
Technology Fund, LTD, Eric Swartz, Michael C. Kendrick, Vertical Ventures LLC 
and Triton West Group, Inc. dated November 16, 2001 (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.73 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 19, 
2001, as filed with the Commission on November 19, 2001). 

10.74 Form of Warrant to be issued to Investors pursuant to the Common Stock Purchase 
Agreement dated November 16, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.74 to 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 19, 2001, as filed with 
the Commission on November 19, 2001). 

10.75 Common Stock Purchase Agreement to purchase 1,100,000 shares of Common 
Stock of Registrant issued to ZLP Master Fund, LTD and Vertical Capital Holdings, 
Ltd. dated January 28, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.75 to 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2002, as filed with the 
Commission on February 5, 2002). 

10.76 Form of Warrant to be issued to Investors pursuant to the Common Stock Purchase 
Agreement dated January 28, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.76 to 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2002, as filed with the 
Commission on February 5, 2002). 

10.77 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of August 9, 2002 between Registrant and 
Purchasers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.77 to Registrant’s Registration 
Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with the Commission on 
September 4, 2002). 
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Exhibit 
Number Description

10.78 Form of Convertible Debentures issued to Purchasers pursuant to Securities 
Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.78 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as 
filed with the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.79 Registration Rights Agreement dated August 9, 2002 between Registrant and 
Purchasers of Securities Purchase Agreements dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.79 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 
(File No. 333-99157), as filed with the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.80 Form of Warrant to be issued to Purchasers pursuant to Securities Purchase 
Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.80 to 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with 
the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.81 Form of Warrant issued to Debenture holders pursuant to Securities Purchase 
Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.81 to 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with 
the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.82 Form of Adjustment Warrant issued to Investors pursuant to Securities Purchase 
Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.82 to 
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with 
the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.83 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of August 9, 2002 between Registrant and 
ZLP Master Fund, Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.83 to Registrant’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with the 
Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.84 Registration Rights Agreement dated August 9, 2002 between Registrant and ZLP 
Master Fund, Ltd. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.84 to Registrant’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as filed with the 
Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.85 Form of Warrant to be issued to ZLP Master Fund, Ltd. pursuant to Securities 
Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.85 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as 
filed with the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.86 Form of Adjustment Warrant issued to ZLP Master Fund, Ltd. pursuant to Securities 
Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2002 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.86 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-99157), as 
filed with the Commission on September 4, 2002). 

10.87 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 6, 2003 between Registrant and 
eight institutional investors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.87 to 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2003).

10.88 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 6, 2003 between Registrant and one 
institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.88 to Registrant's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2003).
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Exhibit 
Number Description

10.89 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 26, 2003 between Registrant and 
seven institutional investors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.89 to 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2003).

10.90 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 24, 2003 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.90 to Registrant's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2003).

10.91 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated September 18, 2003 between Registrant 
and one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.91 to 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 
2003).

10.92 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 22, 2004 between Registrant 
and one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.92 to 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 
2004).

10.93 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 31, 2004 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.93 to Registrant’s 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 2005). 

10.95 2003 Stock Incentive Plan Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated by 
reference to the exhibit contained in Registrant’s Registration Statement in form S-8 
(File No. 333-121334).* 

10.96 2003 Stock Incentive Plan Incentive Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated by 
reference to the exhibit contained in Registrant’s Registration Statement in form S-8 
(File No. 333-121334)).* 

10.97 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 31, 2005 between Registrant 
and one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.97 to 
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 
2005).

10.98 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 2005 Stock Incentive Plan 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.98 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 
8-K as filed with the Commission on October 28, 2005).* 

10.99 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for 2005 Stock Incentive Plan 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.99 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 
8-K as filed with the Commission on October 28, 2005).* 

10.100 Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit B to Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the 
Commission on August 29, 2005).* 

10.101 First Amendment to Lease and Agreement of Lease between TNCA, LLC, as 
Landlord, and Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc., as Tenant, dated December 22, 2005 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 and 99.2 to Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on December 23, 2005). 
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Exhibit 
Number Description

10.102 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated May 11, 2005 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report 
on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005). 

10.103 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 22, 2005 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on June 24, 2005). 

10.104 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated November 23, 2005 between Registrant 
and one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on November 23, 2005). 

10.105 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 5, 2006 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on April 6, 2006). 

10.106 Form of Performance Share Award Agreement / Stock Bonus Plan dated February 
13, 2006 between Registrant and key employees and consultants. ** 

10.107 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 16, 2006 between Registrant and 
one institutional investor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Commission on June 19, 2006). 

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant *** 

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm *** 

31.1   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.*** 

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.*** 

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
of 2002.*** 

_______________________________ 
*

**
*** 

This Exhibit is a management contract or a compensation plan or arrangement. 
Portions omitted pursuant to a request of confidentiality filed separately with the Commission. 
Filed herewith. 
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized.

PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.   

Dated:  July 9, 2007    By: /s/ STEVEN W. KING    
      Steven W. King, President and Chief Executive Officer  

POWER OF ATTORNEY 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below 
constitutes and appoints Steven W. King, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Paul J. Lytle, Chief 
Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and 
agents, with the full power of substitution and re-substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in 
any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto 
and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting 
unto each said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act in 
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent, or either of them, or their 
or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated: 

Signature    Capacity    Date

/s/ Steven W. King   President & Chief Executive   July 9, 2007 
Steven W. King    Officer (Principal Executive  
     Officer)  

/s/ Paul J. Lytle    Chief Financial Officer   July 9, 2007 
Paul J. Lytle    (Principal Financial and  
     Principal Accounting Officer) 

/s/ Carlton M. Johnson   Director    July 9, 2007 
Carlton M. Johnson 

/s/ David H. Pohl   Director    July 9, 2007 
David H. Pohl 

/s/ Eric S. Swartz   Director    July 9, 2007 
Eric S. Swartz 

/s/ Dr. Thomas A. Waltz  Director    July 9, 2007 
Thomas A. Waltz, M.D.    
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the 
“Company”) as of April 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 30, 2007.  Our 
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (a)(2).  These consolidated 
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at April 30, 2007 and 2006, and the 
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 
30, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  Also, in our opinion, the related 
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, 
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of 
accounting for Share-Based Payments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 
123 (revised 2004) effective May 1, 2006. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the effectiveness of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting 
as of April 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control--Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated July 9, 2007 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

        /s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Orange County, California 
July 9, 2007   
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF APRIL 30, 2007 AND 2006 

2007 2006
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 16,044,000$          17,182,000$
Trade and other receivables 750,000                 579,000
Inventories, net               1,916,000                   885,000 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets               1,188,000                1,466,000 

     Total current assets             19,898,000              20,112,000 

PROPERTY:
Leasehold improvements                  646,000                   618,000 
Laboratory equipment               3,533,000                3,444,000 
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipment                  873,000                   666,000 

              5,052,000                4,728,000 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization             (3,212,000)              (2,822,000)

     Property, net               1,840,000                1,906,000 

Other assets               1,259,000                   658,000 

TOTAL ASSETS  $          22,997,000  $          22,676,000 



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
AS OF APRIL 30, 2007 AND 2006 (continued) 

2007 2006
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable  $            1,683,000  $          1,233,000 
Accrued clinical trial site fees                   228,000                 170,000 
Accrued legal and accounting fees                   392,000                 250,000 
Accrued royalties and license fees                   337,000                 138,000 
Accrued payroll and related costs                   874,000                 850,000 
Notes payable, current portion                   379,000                 429,000 
Capital lease obligation, current portion                     17,000                   15,000 
Deferred revenue                1,060,000                 563,000 
Other current liabilities                   885,000                 836,000 

     Total current liabilities                5,855,000              4,484,000 

Notes payable, less current portion                   119,000                 498,000 
Capital lease obligation, less current portion                     30,000                   47,000 
Deferred license revenue                       4,000                   21,000 
Commitments and contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock - $.001 par value; authorized 5,000,000 
shares; non-voting; nil shares outstanding -                            - 
Common stock - $.001 par value; authorized 250,000,000 
shares; outstanding  – 196,112,201 and 179,382,191, 
respectively                   196,000                 179,000 
Additional paid-in-capital            224,453,000          204,546,000 
Deferred stock compensation                              -               (235,000)
Accumulated deficit          (207,660,000)        (186,864,000)

     Total stockholders’ equity              16,989,000            17,626,000 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $          22,997,000  $        22,676,000 



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2007 

2007 2006 2005

REVENUES:
Contract manufacturing revenue  $        3,492,000  $        3,005,000  $        4,684,000 
License revenue               216,000               188,000               275,000 

   Total revenues            3,708,000            3,193,000            4,959,000 

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of contract manufacturing            3,296,000            3,297,000            4,401,000 
Research and development          15,876,000          12,415,000          11,164,000 
Selling, general and administrative            6,446,000            6,564,000            5,098,000 

   Total costs and expenses         25,618,000         22,276,000         20,663,000 

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS       (21,910,000)       (19,083,000)       (15,704,000)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Recovery of note receivable                           -            1,229,000                        -   
Interest and other income            1,160,000               846,000               265,000 
Interest and other expense               (46,000)               (53,000)               (13,000)

NET LOSS  $   (20,796,000)  $   (17,061,000)  $   (15,452,000)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON 
SHARES OUTSTANDING        192,297,309        168,294,782        144,812,001 
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER 
COMMON SHARE  $               (0.11)  $               (0.10)  $               (0.11)
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2007 

2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss  $    (20,796,000)  $    (17,061,000)  $    (15,452,000)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
   Depreciation and amortization               475,000               415,000               325,000 
   Stock-based compensation and issuance of common stock under stock bonus 
plan            1,324,000               543,000               231,000 
   Amortization of expenses paid in shares of common stock               391,000            1,048,000               485,000 
   Loss (gain) on sale of property                   1,000                 (6,000)  - 
   Recovery of note receivable  -          (1,229,000)  - 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
   Trade and other receivables             (171,000)               (93,000)            1,034,000 
   Inventories          (1,031,000)             (258,000)               613,000 
   Prepaid expenses and other current assets             (113,000)             (410,000)                   7,000 
   Accounts payable               450,000               (92,000)                 (6,000)
   Accrued clinical trial site fees                 58,000               162,000               (46,000)
   Deferred revenue               480,000                 17,000          (1,082,000)
   Accrued payroll and related expenses                 63,000                 44,000               303,000 
   Other accrued expenses and current liabilities               390,000               (37,000)               420,000 
          Net cash used in operating activities        (18,479,000)        (16,957,000)        (13,168,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
   Property acquisitions             (220,000)             (618,000)          (1,090,000)
   Decrease (increase) in other assets, net               140,000             (171,000)             (101,000)
   Recovery of note receivable  -            1,229,000  - 
          Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities               (80,000)               440,000          (1,191,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
   Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of  issuance costs of 
     $46,000, $48,000, and $49,000, respectively          17,865,000          23,627,000            8,623,000 
   Proceeds from issuance of notes payable  -               566,000               733,000 
   Principal payments on notes payable and capital lease             (444,000)             (310,000)               (65,000)
          Net cash provided by financing activities          17,421,000          23,883,000            9,291,000 



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2007 (continued) 

2007 2006 2005

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $      (1,138,000)  $   7,366,000  $      (5,068,000)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,  Beginning of year          17,182,000       9,816,000          14,884,000 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year  $      16,044,000  $ 17,182,000  $        9,816,000 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest paid  $             50,000  $        49,000  $             13,000 

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property acquired under capital lease  $          -  $        65,000  $          - 
Common stock issued for research fees and prepayments for future research 
services  $           931,000  $      907,000  $        1,449,000 

 For supplemental information relating to common stock issued in exchange for services, 
property acquired under capital lease, and property financed in exchange for notes payable, see Notes 5 
and 8.



PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR EACH OF THE THREE YEARS IN THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2007

F-8

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS DESCRIPTION  

 Organization – In this Annual Report, “Peregrine,” “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our,” refer to 
Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and our wholly owned subsidiary Avid Bioservices, Inc.  Peregrine was 
incorporated under the laws of the state of California in June 1981, reincorporated in Delaware in September 
1996 and commenced operations of Avid Bioservices, Inc. (“Avid”) in January 2002.  

Business Description –   Peregrine a biopharmaceutical company with a portfolio of clinical stage and 
pre-clinical product candidates using monoclonal antibodies (“MAb”) for the treatment of cancer and viral 
diseases. We are advancing three separate clinical programs encompassing two platform technologies:  Anti-
PhosphatidylSerine (“Anti-PS”) Immunotherapeutics and Tumor Necrosis Therapies (“TNT”).  Our lead 
Anti-PS Immunotherapeutic MAb product, bavituximab, is in clinical trials for the treatment of both solid 
cancer tumors and hepatitis C virus (“HCV”) infection.  Bavituximab as an anti-viral agent has completed 
Phase Ia and Phase Ib clinical studies for the treatment of HCV infection and is in pre-clinical studies for 
human immunodeficiency virus (“HIV”) and other life-threatening viral infections.  Bavituximab as an anti-
cancer agent is in a Phase I monotherapy trial for the treatment of solid tumors in the U.S. and it recently 
completed a Phase Ib trial in combination with chemotherapy in patients with solid tumors in India.  Under 
our TNT platform technology, our lead candidate Cotara®, is currently in a dose confirmation and dosimetry 
clinical trial in the U.S. and in a Phase II clinical trial in India, both for the treatment of glioblastoma 
multiforme, a deadly form of brain cancer.   

We are organized into two reportable operating segments: (i) Peregrine, the parent company, is 
engaged in the research and development of targeted therapeutics and (ii) Avid Bioservices, Inc., (“Avid”) our 
wholly owned subsidiary, is engaged in contract manufacturing and related services for Peregrine and outside 
customers on a fee-for-services basis.   

 We have expended substantial funds on the development of our product candidates and we have 
incurred negative cash flows from operations for the majority of our years since inception.  Since inception, 
we have financed our operations primarily through the sale of our common stock and issuance of convertible 
debt, which has been supplemented with payments received from various licensing collaborations and through 
the revenues generated by Avid.  We expect negative cash flows from operations to continue until we are able 
to generate sufficient revenue from the contract manufacturing services provided by Avid and/or from the sale 
and/or licensing of our products under development.  

Revenues earned by Avid during fiscal years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to 
$3,492,000, $3,005,000 and $4,684,000, respectively.  We expect that Avid will continue to generate revenues 
which should partially offset our consolidated cash flows used in operations, although we expect those near 
term revenues will be insufficient to cover our anticipated consolidated cash flows used in operations.  In 
addition, revenues that may be generated from the sale and/or licensing of our products under development 
are always uncertain.  Therefore, our ability to continue our clinical trials and development efforts is highly 
dependent on the amount of cash and cash equivalents on hand combined with our ability to raise additional 
capital to support our future operations beyond fiscal year 2008.  At April 30, 2007, we had $16,044,000 in 
cash and cash equivalents.  On June 28, 2007, we raised an additional $20,900,000 in net proceeds under a 
Securities Purchase Agreement with several institutional investors (Note 8).  We believe we have sufficient 
cash on hand to continue our research, development, and clinical testing of our product candidates through at 
least fiscal year 2008.  
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We may raise additional capital through the sale of shares of our common stock to continue our 
research, development, and clinical testing of our product candidates beyond fiscal year 2008.  We have 
approximately 5,031,000 shares available for possible future registered transactions under two separate 
registration statements.  In addition, during January 2007, we filed a separate registration statement on Form 
S-3, File Number 333-139975, which allows us to issue, from time to time, in one or more offerings, shares of 
our common stock for remaining proceeds of up to $7,500,000.  However, given uncertain market conditions 
and the volatility of our stock price and trading volume, we may not be able to sell our securities at prices or 
on terms that are favorable to us, if at all.   

There can be no assurances that we will be successful in raising sufficient capital on terms acceptable 
to us, or at all, or that sufficient additional revenues will be generated from Avid or under potential licensing 
agreements to complete the research, development, and clinical testing of our product candidates beyond 
fiscal year 2008.     

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Basis of Presentation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Peregrine and its wholly owned subsidiary, Avid Bioservices, Inc.  All intercompany balances and 
transactions have been eliminated. 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents - We consider all highly liquid, short-term investments with an initial 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  

 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - We continually monitor our allowance for doubtful accounts for 
all receivables.  A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realization of these 
receivables and we estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts based on these factors at that point in time. 

 Prepaid Expenses - Our prepaid expenses primarily represent pre-payments made to secure the 
receipt of services at a future date.  We have prepaid various research and development related services 
through the issuance of shares of our common stock to unrelated entities during fiscal year 2007 and 2006, 
which are expensed once the services have been provided under the terms of the arrangement.  As of April 30, 
2007 and 2006, prepaid expenses and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated financials 
statements include $475,000 and $866,000, respectively, in research and development services prepaid with 
shares of our common stock.   

 These prepaid research and development balances as of April 30, 2007 and April 30, 2006 include 
amounts paid in shares of our common stock to Affitech AS of $475,000 under a research collaboration 
agreement for the generation of fully human monoclonal antibodies against two targets that are currently 
undefined and contain no expiration clauses.  We will expense these prepaid targets once they are defined and 
delivered to Affitech AS in accordance with the terms of the agreement, which we expect will occur within 
the next twelve months.   
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Inventories - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and includes raw materials, direct 
labor, and overhead costs associated with our wholly owned subsidiary, Avid.  Cost is determined by the first-
in, first-out method.  Inventories consist of the following at April 30, 2007 and April 30, 2006: 

2007  2006 
Raw materials, net  $    810,000  $    565,000 
Work-in-process  1,106,000      320,000 

 Total inventories  $  1,916,000    $    885,000    

Concentrations of Credit Risk - The majority of trade and other receivables as of April 30, 2007, are 
from customers in the United States, Germany and Israel.  Most contracts require up-front payments and 
installment payments during the term of the service.  We perform periodic credit evaluations of our ongoing 
customers and generally do not require collateral, but we can terminate any contract if a material default 
occurs.  Reserves are maintained for potential credit losses and such losses have been within our estimates.

Comprehensive Loss - Comprehensive loss is equal to net loss for all periods presented.

 Property - Property is recorded at cost.  Depreciation and amortization are computed using the 
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related asset, generally ranging from three to ten 
years.  Amortization of leasehold improvements is calculated using the straight-line method over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term.

 Impairment - Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. We assess recoverability of our long-
term assets by comparing the remaining carrying value to the value of the underlying collateral or the fair 
market value of the related long-term asset based on undiscounted cash flows. Long-lived assets are reported 
at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 

 Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue primarily consists of up-front contract fees and installment 
payments received by Avid prior to the recognition of revenues under contract manufacturing, and 
development agreements and up-front license fees received by Peregrine under technology licensing 
agreements.  Deferred revenue is generally recognized once the service has been provided, all obligations 
have been met and/or upon shipment of the product to the customer. 

Revenue Recognition - We currently derive revenues primarily from licensing agreements associated 
with Peregrine’s technologies under development and from contract manufacturing services provided by 
Avid.

We recognize revenues pursuant to the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB No. 104”), 
Revenue Recognition.  In accordance with SAB No. 104, revenue is generally realized or realizable and 
earned when (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services have been 
rendered, (iii) the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectibility is reasonably 
assured.

 In addition, we comply with Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Emerging Issues Task Force 
No. 00-21 (“EITF 00-21”), Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.  In accordance with EITF 00-
21, we recognize revenue for delivered elements only when the delivered element has stand-alone value and 
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we have objective and reliable evidence of fair value for each undelivered element.  If the fair value of any 
undelivered element included in a multiple element arrangement cannot be objectively determined, revenue is 
deferred until all elements are delivered and services have been performed, or until fair value can objectively 
be determined for any remaining undelivered elements. 

 Revenues associated with licensing agreements primarily consist of nonrefundable up-front license 
fees and milestones payments.  Revenues under licensing agreements are recognized based on the 
performance requirements of the agreement.  Nonrefundable up-front license fees received under license 
agreements, whereby continued performance or future obligations are considered inconsequential to the 
relevant licensed technology, are generally recognized as revenue upon delivery of the technology.    
Nonrefundable up-front license fees, whereby ongoing involvement or performance obligations exist, are 
generally recorded as deferred revenue and generally recognized as revenue over the term of the performance 
obligation or relevant agreement.  Milestone payments are recognized as revenue upon the achievement of 
mutually agreed milestones, provided that (i) the milestone event is substantive and its achievement is not 
reasonably assured at the inception of the agreement, and (ii) there are no continuing performance obligations 
associated with the milestone payment.  Under a license agreement with Schering A.G. (Note 7), the 
obligation period was not contractually defined in relation to a $300,000 upfront fee.  Under this 
circumstance, we exercised judgment in estimating the period of time over which certain deliverables will be 
provided to enable the licensee to practice the license, which was determined to be 48 months.  The estimated 
period of 48 months was primarily determined based on our historical experience with Schering A.G. under a 
separate license agreement.  

 Contract manufacturing revenues are generally recognized once the service has been provided and/or 
upon shipment of the product to the customer.  We also record a provision for estimated contract losses, if 
any, in the period in which they are determined.  

 In July 2000, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) released Issue 99-19 (“EITF 99-19”), 
Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.  EITF 99-19 summarized the EITF’s views 
on when revenue should be recorded at the gross amount billed to a customer because it has earned revenue 
from the sale of goods or services, or the net amount retained (the amount billed to the customer less the 
amount paid to a supplier) because it has earned a fee or commission.  In addition, the EITF released Issue 00-
10 (“EITF 00-10”), Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs, and Issue 01-14 (“EITF 01-14”), 
Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for “Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred.
EITF 00-10 summarized the EITF’s views on how the seller of goods should classify in the income statement 
amounts billed to a customer for shipping and handling and the costs associated with shipping and handling.  
EITF 01-14 summarized the EITF’s views on when the reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses should be 
characterized as revenue or as a reduction of expenses incurred.  Our revenue recognition policies are in 
compliance with EITF 99-19, EITF 00-10 and EITF 01-14 whereby we record revenue for the gross amount 
billed to customers (the cost of raw materials, supplies, and shipping, plus the related handling mark-up fee) 
and we record the cost of the amounts billed as cost of sales as we act as a principal in these transactions.      

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - Our financial instruments consist principally of cash and cash 
equivalents, receivables, inventories, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities.  We believe all of the financial 
instruments' recorded values approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
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differ from these estimates. 

Basic and Dilutive Net Loss Per Common Share - Basic and dilutive net loss per common share are 
calculated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings per Share.
Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing our net loss by the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period excluding the dilutive effects of options and warrants.  Diluted 
net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss by the sum of the weighted average number 
of common shares outstanding during the period plus the potential dilutive effects of options and warrants 
outstanding during the period calculated in accordance with the treasury stock method, but are excluded if 
their effect is anti-dilutive.  Because the impact of options and warrants are anti-dilutive during periods of net 
loss, there was no difference between basic and diluted loss per common share amounts for the three years 
ended April 30, 2007.   

The calculation of weighted average diluted shares outstanding excludes the dilutive effect of options 
and warrants to purchase up to 2,071,087, 3,433,414 and 6,485,168 shares of common stock for the fiscal 
years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, since the impact of such options and warrants are 
anti-dilutive during periods of net loss. 

The calculation of weighted average diluted shares outstanding also excludes weighted average 
outstanding options and warrants to purchase up to 7,218,883, 9,090,374 and 11,946,248 shares of common 
stock for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, as the exercise prices of those 
options were greater than the average market price of our common stock during the respective periods, 
resulting in an anti-dilutive effect.   

On June 28, 2007, we issued 30,000,000 shares of our common stock under a Securities Purchase 
Agreement (Note 8) in exchange for net proceeds of approximately $20,900,000, which additional shares 
have been excluded from the calculation of basic and dilutive net loss per common share for the year ended 
April 30, 2007. 

Income Taxes - We utilize the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.  Under the liability 
method, deferred taxes are determined based on the differences between the consolidated financial statements 
and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates.  A valuation allowance is provided when it is 
more likely than not that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized. 

 Research and Development - Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred 
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 2, Accounting for Research and 
Development Costs.  Research and development expenses primarily include (i) payroll and related costs 
associated with research and development personnel, (ii) costs related to clinical and pre-clinical testing of 
our technologies under development, (iii) costs to develop and manufacture the product candidates, including 
raw materials and supplies, product testing, depreciation, and facility related expenses, (iv) technology access 
and maintenance fees, including intellectual property fees and fees incurred under licensing agreements, (v) 
expenses for research services provided by universities and contract laboratories, including sponsored 
research funding, and (vi) other research and development expenses.   

Recent Accounting Pronouncements -        In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An 
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement 
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attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be 
taken in a tax return. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.  We 
adopted FIN 48 on May 1, 2007 and are currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48, which we believe will not 
have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements. 

 In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 (“SFAS 
No. 157”), Fair Value Measurements, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 will be effective 
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we would be required to implement no later than 
May 1, 2008.   We have not yet evaluated the potential impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on our consolidated 
financial statements. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159 (“SFAS 
No. 159”), The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities – Including an amendment of 
FASB statement No. 115 . SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments 
and certain other items at fair value.  If the fair value method is selected, a business entity shall report 
unrealized gains and losses on elected items in earnings at each subsequent reporting date.  The standard also 
establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies 
that choose different measurement attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities.  SFAS No. 159 is 
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which we would be required to implement no 
later than May 1, 2008.  We have not yet evaluated the potential impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 on our 
consolidated financial statements. 

3. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

We currently maintain four equity compensation plans referred to as the 1996 Plan, the 2002 Plan, the 
2003 Plan, and the 2005 Plan (collectively referred to as the “Option Plans”).  The 1996, 2003 and 2005 Plans 
were approved by our stockholders while the 2002 Plan was not submitted for stockholder approval.  The 
Option Plans provide for the granting of options to purchase shares of our common stock at exercise prices 
not less than the fair market value of our common stock at the date of grant.  The options generally vest over a 
four year period and no options are exercisable after ten years from the date of grant.   

Prior to fiscal year 2007, we accounted for stock options granted under the Option Plans in 
accordance with Accounting Principles Board No. 25 (“APB No. 25”), Accounting for Stock Issued to 
Employees and Related Interpretations, as permitted by FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 
No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123”), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.  Accordingly, no compensation 
expense was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for fiscal years 2006 and 
2005 related to stock option grants, as all options granted under the Option Plans had an exercise price at least 
equal to the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the grant date.  

 Effective May 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (“SFAS 
No. 123R”), Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004), which supersedes our previous accounting under APB 
No. 25.  SFAS No. 123R requires the recognition of compensation expense, using a fair value based method, 
for costs related to all share-based payments including grants of employee stock options.  In addition, SFAS 
No. 123R requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant 
using an option-pricing model.  The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is 
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods (vesting period).  We adopted 
SFAS 123R using the modified-prospective method and, accordingly, stock-based compensation cost 
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recognized beginning May 1, 2006 includes:  (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted 
prior to, but not yet vested as of May 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with 
the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted on 
or subsequent to May 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions 
of SFAS No. 123R.  Results for prior periods have not been restated. 

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on May 1, 2006, our net loss for the year ended April 30, 
2007 was increased by $964,000 ($0.01 per basic and diluted share), which costs are included in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations as follows: 

2007
Research and development $  589,000 
Selling, general and administrative 375,000 

Total  $  964,000 

The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model and 
is amortized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, 
which is generally the vesting period (typically 4 years).  The use of a valuation model requires us to make 
certain estimates and assumptions with respect to selected model inputs.  The expected volatility is based on 
the daily historical volatility of our stock covering the estimated expected term.  The expected term of options 
granted during fiscal year 2007 is based on the expected time to exercise using the “simplified” method 
allowable under the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.  Prior to 
fiscal year 2007, the expected term was based on the average estimated expected life of the options granted 
during the fiscal year.  The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury notes with terms within the 
contractual life of the option at the time of grant.  The expected dividend yield assumption is based on our 
expectation of future dividend payouts.  We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common 
stock and currently do not anticipate paying such cash dividends. In addition, SFAS No. 123R requires 
forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual 
forfeitures differ from those estimates.  The fair value of stock options on the date of grant and the weighted-
average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the stock options using the Black-Scholes option 
valuation model for fiscal years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were as follows:  

Year Ended April 30, 
2007 2006 2005 

Risk-free interest rate 4.83%  3.88%  3.38% 
Expected life (in years) 6.25  5.49   4.00 
Expected volatility 98%  103%  115% 
Expected dividend yield -  -  - 

As of April 30, 2007, options to purchase up to 11,537,946 shares of our common stock were issued 
and outstanding under the Option Plans with a weighted average exercise price of $1.54 per share and expire 
at various dates through April 16, 2017.  Options to purchase up to 4,651,409 shares of common stock were 
available for future grant under the Option Plans as of April 30, 2007.   
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The following summarizes all stock option transaction activity for fiscal year ended April 30, 2007: 

Stock Options Shares

Weighted 
Average 

Exercisable
Price

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term
(years)

Aggregate 
Intrinsic

Value
Outstanding, May 1, 2006  11,307,279  $ 1.56     
Granted  1,005,260  $ 1.29     
Exercised  (65,350)  $ 0.90     
Canceled or expired  (709,243)  $ 1.63     
Outstanding, April 30, 2007  11,537,946  $ 1.54  5.84  $     916,000
         
Exercisable and expected to vest  11,321,992  $ 1.54  5.79  $     912,000
Exercisable, April 30, 2007  9,251,102  $ 1.59  5.20  $     888,000
         

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended April 30, 2007, 
2006 and 2005 was $1.05, $0.91 and $0.80 per share, respectively.  The aggregate intrinsic value of stock 
options exercised during the years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $38,000, $55,000 and 
$1,217,000, respectively.  

Cash proceeds from stock options exercised during the years ended April 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 
totaled $59,000, $122,000 and $1,393,000.  

We issue shares of common stock that are reserved for issuance under the Option Plans upon the 
exercise of stock options, and we do not expect to repurchase shares of common stock from any source to 
satisfy our obligations under our compensation plans. 

 As of April 30, 2007, the total estimated unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock 
options was $1,764,000.  This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average vesting period of 
2.94 years based on current assumptions. 

As discussed above, results for prior periods have not been restated to reflect the effects of 
implementing SFAS No. 123R.  Prior to May 1, 2006, we accounted for our stock option grants in accordance 
with APB No. 25 and provided the pro forma disclosures required by SFAS No. 123.  The following table 
illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share for the years ended April 30, 2006 and 2005 had we 
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to our stock option grants:    
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  YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 

2006 2005 

Net loss, as reported $   (17,061,000) $  (15,452,000)

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation 
expense determined under the fair value based 
method for all awards 

      
(1,755,000)       (2,828,000)

Net loss, pro forma $  (18,816,000) $  (18,280,000)
Basic and diluted net loss per share: 

   Net loss, as reported $              (0.10) $              (0.11)

   Net loss, pro forma $              (0.11) $              (0.13)

Periodically, we grant stock options to non-employee consultants.  The fair value of options granted 
to non-employees are measured utilizing the Black-Scholes option valuation model and are amortized over 
the estimated period of service or related vesting period in accordance with EITF 96-18, Accounting for 
Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, 
Goods or Services.  Stock-based compensation expense recorded during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 
associated with non-employees amounted to $57,000, $499,000 and $231,000, respectively.    

In addition, during February 2006, our Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved 
a Stock Bonus Plan that remained in effect through April 30, 2007 to promote the interests of the Company 
and its stockholders by issuing key employees and consultants a predetermined number of shares of the 
Company’s common stock upon achievement of various research and clinical goals (“Performance Goals”).  
Compensation expense associated with shares issued under the Stock Bonus Plan was calculated in 
accordance with APB No. 25 and EITF 96-18.  In accordance with APB No. 25 and EITF 96-18, we recorded 
compensation expense at each reporting period when it became probable that a Performance Goal under the 
Stock Bonus Plan would be achieved and this accrual was carefully assessed at each subsequent reporting 
period and adjusted accordingly until the Performance Goal was actually achieved.  Decreases or increases to 
these accruals were accounted for as cumulative catch-up adjustments under FIN 28, Accounting for Stock 
Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Awards Plans.  During fiscal years 2007 and 2006, 
we recorded $304,000 and $83,000, respectively, in compensation expense under the Stock Bonus Plan. 

4. RECOVERY OF NOTE RECEIVABLE 

 During December 1998, we completed the sale and subsequent leaseback of our two facilities in 
Tustin, California and recorded an initial note receivable from the buyer of $1,925,000 as part of the 
consideration.  During the quarter ended October 31, 1999, we established a 100% reserve for the note 
receivable in the amount of $1,887,000 based on our then financial condition and the underlying terms of the 
note agreement.  We reduced the reserve as monthly payments were received and we recorded the reduction 
as interest and other income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  On December 22, 
2005, we entered into a First Amendment to Lease and Agreement of Lease (“First Amendment”) with the 
landlord to our original lease dated December 24, 1998 and extended the original lease term for seven years, 
which extends our contractual commitment under the operating lease through December 2017.  In addition, 
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the monthly lease payment terms under the original lease, which increase at a rate of 3.35% every two years, 
have not been modified.  In connection with this First Amendment, we entered into a separate agreement with 
the landlord on December 22, 2005 regarding the immediate payoff of our note receivable in the amount of 
$1,229,000, which amount was recorded as recovery of note receivable in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations during fiscal year 2006.   

5.   NOTES PAYABLE AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION 

 We have entered into the following note payable agreements with General Electric Capital 
Corporation (“GE”) to finance certain laboratory equipment.  Notes payable consist of the following at April 
30, 2007 and April 30, 2006: 

April 30, 
2007 

April 30, 
2006 

Note payable dated November 2004; 5.78% per annum; 
monthly payments of $11,000 due through December 
2007……………………………………………………. $ 83,000 $   202,000 

Note payable dated December 2004; 5.85% per annum; 
monthly payments of $12,000 due through January 
2008………………………………………………….....  103,000 

      
232,000 

Note payable dated June 2005; 6.39% per annum; 
monthly payments of $8,000 due through July 2008 ….  117,000 205,000 

Note payable dated November 2005; 6.63% per annum; 
monthly payments of $3,000 due through December 
2008…………………………………………………….  60,000       92,000 

Note payable dated March 2006; 6.87% per annum; 
monthly payments of $6,000 due through April 2009…  135,000  196,000 

     498,000       927,000 
Less current portion  (379,000)      (429,000) 
Notes payable, less current portion $  119,000  $   498,000 

                      
Under the terms of the GE note payable agreements, we paid security deposits equal to 25% of the 

amount financed, which are due and payable to us at the end of the term of each note agreement.  As of April 
30, 2007 and April 30, 2006, security deposits totaling $325,000 are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements as follows: 

2007  2006 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  $    183,000  $         - 
Other long-term assets   142,000      325,000 

 Total security deposits  $    325,000     $    325,000    
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Minimum future principal payments on notes payable as of April 30, 2007 are as follows: 

Year ending April 30:   
2008        379,000   
2009        119,000   
Total  $   498,000 
   

 During December 2005, we financed certain equipment under a capital lease agreement in the amount 
of $65,000.  The agreement bears interest at a rate of 6.30% per annum with payments due monthly in the 
amount of approximately $1,600 through December 2009.   

 The equipment purchased under the capital lease is included in property in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements as follows at April 30, 2007:  

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment $  68,000 
Less accumulated depreciation    (18,000) 
Net book value $  50,000 

 Minimum future lease payments under the capital lease as of April 30, 2007 are as follows: 

Year ending April 30:   
2008       19,000   
2009       19,000   
2010       13,000   

Total minimum lease payments     51,000 
    Amount representing interest (4,000) 
Net present value minimum lease payments    47,000 
    Less current portion 17,000 
 $   30,000 

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
   
 Operating Leases - In December 1998, we sold and subsequently leased back our two facilities in 
Tustin, California.  The lease has an original lease term of 12 years with two 5-year renewal options and 
includes scheduled rental increases of 3.35% every two years.  On December 22, 2005, we entered into a First 
Amendment to Lease and Agreement of Lease (“First Amendment”) with the landlord to our original lease 
dated December 24, 1998 and extended the original lease term for seven additional years to expire on 
December 31, 2017 while maintaining our two 5-year renewal options that could extend our lease to 
December 31, 2027.  Our monthly lease payments will continue to increase at a rate of 3.35% every two years 
under the First Amendment.  We record rent expense on a straight-line basis and the differences between the 
amounts paid and the amounts expensed are included in other current liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.  Annual rent expense under the lease agreement totaled $807,000, $758,000 
and $735,000 during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.     

 During fiscal year 2004, we entered into an operating lease agreement to lease certain office 
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equipment.  The lease has a 5-year term and annual minimum lease payments are $29,000.    

 During February 2005, we entered into an operating lease agreement to lease certain office space in 
Houston, Texas.  The lease has a 3-year term and annual minimum lease payments are $20,000 plus a pro rata 
share of monthly operating expenses.  Rent expense under the lease agreement totaled $21,000 during fiscal 
years 2007 and 2006 and $4,000 during fiscal year 2005.     

 At April 30, 2007, future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating leases are as 
follows:

Year ending April 30: 
 Minimum Lease 

Payments 
  2008  $      815,000 
  2009 793,000 
  2010 796,000 
  2011       805,000 
  2012       822,000 
  Thereafter     4,914,000 

   $   8,945,000 

Rental Income –  Sublease rental income totaled $35,000, $59,000 and $99,000 for fiscal years 2007, 
2006 and 2005, respectively.  As of April 30, 2007, we have no sublease rental arrangements.  

Legal Proceedings – From time to time, we are subject to legal proceeding and disputes during the 
ordinary course of business.  We currently are not aware of any such legal proceeding or claim that we 
believe will have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, 
operating results or cash flows. 

7. LICENSE, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS 

 The following represents a summary of our key collaborations for the development and 
commercialization of our products in clinical trials, bavituximab and Cotara®.  In addition, we do not perform 
any research and development activities for any unrelated entities.   

Tumor Necrosis Therapy (“TNT”) 

Cotara® is the trade name of our first TNT-based product currently in clinical trials for the treatment 
of brain cancer.  We acquired the rights to the TNT technology in July 1994 after the merger between 
Peregrine and Cancer Biologics, Inc. was approved by our stockholders.  The assets acquired from Cancer 
Biologics, Inc. primarily consisted of patent rights to the TNT technology.  To date, no product revenues have 
been generated from our TNT technology. 

 In October 2004, we entered into a worldwide non-exclusive license agreement with Lonza Biologics 
(“Lonza”) for intellectual property and materials relating to the expression of recombinant monoclonal 
antibodies for use in the manufacture of Cotara®.  Under the terms of the agreement, we paid an upfront fee 
of 75,000 pounds sterling ($141,000 U.S.) which is included in research and development expense in the 
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accompanying consolidated financial statements in fiscal year 2005, and we will pay a royalty on net sales of 
any products that we market that utilize the underlying technology.  In the event a product is approved and we 
or Lonza do not manufacture Cotara®, we would owe Lonza 300,000 pounds sterling per year in addition to 
an increased royalty on net sales. 

Anti-PhosphatidylSerine (“Anti-PS”) Immunotherapeutics 

 Bavituximab is the generic name for our first product in clinical trials under our Anti-PS 
Immunotherapeutics technology platform.  In August 2001, we exclusively in-licensed the worldwide rights 
to this technology platform from the University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center at Dallas.  During 
November 2003 and October 2004, we entered into two non-exclusive license agreements with Genentech, 
Inc. to license certain intellectual property rights covering methods and processes for producing antibodies 
used in connection with the development of our Anti-PS Immunotherapeutics program.  During December 
2003, we entered into an exclusive commercial license agreement with an unrelated entity covering the 
generation of the chimeric monoclonal antibody, bavituximab.  In March 2005, we entered into a worldwide 
non-exclusive license agreement with Lonza Biologics for intellectual property and materials relating to the 
expression of recombinant monoclonal antibodies for use in the manufacture of bavituximab. 

 Under our in-licensing agreements relating to the Anti-PS Immunotherapeutics technology, we 
typically pay an up-front license fee, annual maintenance fees, and are obligated to pay future milestone 
payments based on development progress, plus a royalty on net sales and/or a percentage of sublicense 
income.  Our aggregate future milestone payments under the above in-licensing agreements are $6,900,000 
assuming the achievement of all development milestones under the agreements through commercialization of 
products, of which, we expect to pay up to $100,000 during fiscal year 2008 and $6,400,000 upon approval of 
the first Anti-PS Immunotherapeutics product.  In addition, under one of the agreements, we are required to 
pay future milestone payments upon the completion of Phase II clinical trial enrollment in the amount of 
75,000 pounds sterling, the amount of which will continue as an annual license fee thereafter, plus a royalty 
on net sales of any products that we market that utilize the underlying technology.  In the event we utilize an 
outside contract manufacturer other than Lonza to manufacture bavituximab for commercial purposes, we 
would owe Lonza 300,000 pounds sterling per year in addition to an increased royalty on net sales. 

  During fiscal year 2006, we expensed $450,000 upon the completion of clinical milestones in 
accordance with in-licensing agreements covering our Anti-PS Immunotherapeutics technology platform, 
which is included in research and development expense in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements.  We did not incur any milestone related expenses during fiscal year 2007. 

    
Other Licenses Covering Products in Pre-Clinical Development 

During August 2001, we entered into an exclusive worldwide license for a new pre-clinical 
compound from the University of Texas Southwestern Medical Center.  This new compound, named 2C3, 
added to our anti-cancer platform technologies in the anti-angiogenesis field.  Under this license agreement, 
we paid an up-front license fee and are obligated to pay annual maintenance fees, future milestone payments 
based on development progress, plus a royalty on net sales.  Our aggregate future milestone payments under 
this exclusive worldwide license are $450,000 assuming the achievement of all development milestones under 
the agreement through commercialization of the product.  We do not anticipate making any milestone 
payments under this agreement for at least the next fiscal year.  
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In April 1997, we gained access to certain exclusive licenses for Vascular Targeting Agents 
(“VTAs”) technologies from various institutions.  In conjunction with various licensing agreements covering 
our VTA technology, we are required to pay combined annual fees of $50,000 plus milestone payments based 
on the development success of the technologies and a royalty on net sales.  Our aggregate future milestone 
payments under these exclusive licenses are $1,688,000 assuming the achievement of all development 
milestones under the agreements through commercialization of the product, which are due at various stages of 
clinical development in accordance with the applicable license.  We do not anticipate making any milestone 
payments for at least the next year under these agreements.

During February 2000, we entered into an exclusive worldwide licensing transaction with the 
University of Southern California for its Permeability Enhancing Protein (“PEP”) in exchange for an up-front 
payment plus future milestone payments and a royalty on net sales based on development success.  The PEP 
technology is classified under our Vasopermeation Enhancing Agent (“VEA”) technology, which is designed 
to increase the uptake of chemotherapeutic agents into tumors.  PEP is designed to be used in conjunction 
with the VEA technology platform.  Our aggregate future milestone payments under our PEP and VEA 
exclusive worldwide licensing agreements are $115,000 assuming the achievement of all development 
milestones under the agreement through commercialization of the product.  We do not anticipate making any 
milestone payments for at least the next fiscal year under this agreement. 

During fiscal year 2007, we entered into a research collaboration agreement and a development and 
commercialization agreement with an unrelated entity regarding the generation and commercialization of up 
to fifteen fully human monoclonal antibodies under our platform technologies to be used as possible future 
clinical candidates.  These agreements incorporate the various binding term sheets we entered into with the 
unrelated entity during June 2003, September 2004, and November 2004.  Under the terms of the research 
collaboration agreement, we pay a non-refundable upfront technology access fee for each human antibody 
project initiated.  In addition, under the terms of the development and commercialization agreement, we are 
obligated to pay future milestones payments based on the achievement of development milestones, plus a 
royalty on net sales.  Our aggregate future milestone payments range from $5.75 million to $6.35 million per 
fully human antibody generated by the unrelated entity upon the achievement of certain development 
milestones through commercialization.  During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, we expensed nil, $185,000 
and $150,000, respectively, in non-refundable upfront technology access fees under the research collaboration 
agreement upon the initiation to generate two fully human monoclonal antibodies, the amounts of which are 
included in research and development expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.   

During December 2003, we entered into a research collaboration agreement with an unrelated entity 
regarding the humanization of one of our Anti-PS Immunotherapeutic antibodies to be used as a possible 
future generation clinical candidate.  Under the terms of the research collaboration agreement, we are required 
to pay a non-refundable up-front license fee, antibody development milestone fees, clinical development 
milestone fees and a royalty on net sales.  During fiscal year 2005, we expensed $186,000 in antibody 
development milestones fees, the amount of which is included in research and development expense in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements.  Our minimum aggregate future milestone payments under 
this agreement are $3,250,000 assuming the achievement of all development milestones under the agreement 
through commercialization of the product.  We do not anticipate making any milestone payments for at least 
the next fiscal year under this agreement.  

During July 2004, we announced that we entered into a worldwide exclusive licensing agreement for 
intellectual property related to PhosphatidylSerine conjugates and Anti-PS antibodies from The University of 
Texas M. D. Anderson Cancer Center related to generating an immune response for the treatment of cancer 
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and other indications.  Under the terms of the agreement, we paid The University of Texas M. D. Anderson 
Cancer Center a non-refundable up-front fee of $150,000, which is included in research and development 
expense in fiscal year 2005 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, and we are obligated to 
pay future milestone fees based on the clinical progress of products that fall under the licensed intellectual 
property and a royalty on net sales as defined in the agreement.  Our aggregate future milestone payments 
under this licensing agreement are $1,700,000 assuming the achievement of all development milestones under 
the agreement through commercialization of the product.  We do not anticipate making any milestone 
payments for at least the next fiscal year under this agreement. 

During March 2007, we entered into a worldwide exclusive licensing agreement for intellectual 
property related to the use of beta-2-glycoprotein I as an anti-angiogenesis agent from The University of 
Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center.  Under the terms of the agreement, we paid The University of Texas 
M.D. Anderson Cancer Center a non-refundable up-front fee of $150,000, which is included in research and 
development expense in fiscal year 2007 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  In addition, 
under the terms of the agreement we are obligated to pay annual maintenance fees, clinical development 
milestone fees and a royalty on net sales.  Our aggregate future clinical development milestone payments 
under this licensing agreement are $1,425,000 assuming the achievement of all development milestones under 
the agreement through commercialization of the product.  We do not anticipate making any milestone 
payments for at least the next fiscal year under this agreement.  

Out-Licensing Collaborations 

In addition to our in-licensing collaborations, the following represents a summary of our key out-
licensing collaborations. 

During September 1995, we entered into an agreement with Cancer Therapeutics, Inc., a California 
corporation, whereby we granted to Cancer Therapeutics Laboratories, Inc. (“CTL”) the exclusive right to 
sublicense TNT to a major pharmaceutical company solely in the People’s Republic of China.  We are 
entitled to receive 50% of the distributed profits received by Cancer Therapeutics, Inc. from the Chinese 
pharmaceutical company.  Cancer Therapeutics, Inc. has the right to 20% of the distributed profits under the 
agreement with the Chinese pharmaceutical company.  During March 2001, we extended the exclusive 
licensing period granted to Cancer Therapeutics, which now expires on December 31, 2016.  In exchange for 
this extension, Cancer Therapeutics, Inc. agreed to pay us ten percent (10%) of all other consideration 
received by Cancer Therapeutics, Inc., excluding research funding.  During January 2007, we filed a lawsuit 
alleging breach of contract against CTL alleging various breaches of contract under the agreement.  The 
lawsuit is currently in the discovery phase as further discussed in Part I, Item 3 under “Legal Proceedings” of 
this Annual Report.  Through fiscal year ended April 30, 2007, we have not received any amounts under the 
agreement. 

During October 2000, we entered into a licensing agreement with Merck KGaA to out-license a 
segment of our TNT technology for use in the application of cytokine fusion proteins.  During January 2003, 
we entered into an amendment to the license agreement, whereby we received an extension to the royalty 
period from six years to ten years from the date of the first commercial sale.  Under the terms of agreement, 
we would receive a royalty on net sales if a product is approved under the agreement.  Merck KGaA has not 
publicly disclosed the development status of its program. 

During February 2007, we entered into an amended and restated license agreement with SuperGen, 
Inc. (“SuperGen”) revising the original licensing deal completed with SuperGen in February 2001 to license a 
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segment of our VTA technology, specifically related to certain conjugates Vascular Endothelial Growth 
Factor (“VEGF”). Under the terms of the amended and restated license agreement, we will receive annual 
license fees of up to $200,000 per year payable in cash or SuperGen common stock until SuperGen files an 
Investigational New Drug Application in the United States utilizing the VEGF conjugate technology.  In 
addition, we could receive up to $8.25 million in future payments based on the achievement of all clinical and 
regulatory milestones combined with a royalty on net sales, as defined in the agreement, as amended.  We 
could also receive additional consideration for each clinical candidate that enters a Phase III clinical trial by 
SuperGen.  As of April 30, 2007, SuperGen has not filed an Investigational New Drug Application in the 
United States utilizing the VEGF conjugate technology.     

During December 2002, we granted the exclusive rights for the development of diagnostic and 
imaging agents in the field of oncology to Schering A.G. under our VTA technology.  Under the terms of the 
agreement, we received an up-front payment of $300,000, which we amortized as license revenue over an 
estimated period of 48 months through December 2006 in accordance with SAB No. 104 in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements.  Under this license agreement, the obligation period was not 
contractually defined and we exercised judgment in estimating the period of time over which certain 
deliverables will be provided to enable the licensee to practice the license.  The estimated period of 48 months 
was primarily determined based on the historical experience with Schering A.G. under a separate license 
agreement.  In addition, under the terms of the agreement, we could receive up to $1.2 million in future 
payments for each product based on the achievement of all clinical and regulatory milestones combined with 
a royalty on net sales, as defined in the agreement.  Under the same agreement, we granted Schering A.G. an 
option to obtain certain non-exclusive rights to the VTA technology with predetermined up-front fees and 
milestone payments as defined in the agreement.  Schering A.G. has not publicly disclosed the development 
status of its program. 

During August 2005, we licensed certain intellectual property rights under our VTA technology to 
Medarex, Inc., which allows Medarex, Inc. to develop and commercialize certain monoclonal antibody 
conjugates for the treatment of a wide range of solid tumors.  Under the terms of the agreement, we could 
receive up to $5.95 million in future payments based on the achievement of all clinical and regulatory 
milestones combined with a royalty on net sales, as defined in the agreement.  Medarex has not publicly 
disclosed the development status of its program. 

8.  STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Adoption of a Stockholder Rights Agreement 

On March 16, 2006, our Board of Directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Agreement (“Rights 
Agreement”) that is designed to strengthen the ability of the Board of Directors to protect the interests of our 
stockholders against potential abusive or coercive takeover tactics and to enable all stockholders the full and 
fair value of their investment in the event that an unsolicited attempt is made to acquire Peregrine.  The 
adoption of the Rights Agreement is not intended to prevent an offer the Board of Directors concludes is in 
the best interest of Peregrine and its stockholders. 

Under the Rights Agreement, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one preferred share 
purchase right (a “Right”) for each share of our common stock held by shareholders of record as of the close 
of business on March 27, 2006.  Each Right will entitle holders of each share of our common stock to buy one 
thousandth (1/1,000th) of a share of Peregrine’s Series D Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per 
share, at an exercise price of $11.00 per share, subject to adjustment.  The Rights are neither exercisable nor 
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traded separately from our common stock.  The Rights will become exercisable and will detach from the 
common shares if a person or group acquires 15% or more of our outstanding common stock, without prior 
approval from our Board of Directors, or announces a tender or exchange offer that would result in that 
person or group owning 15% or more of our common stock.  Each Right, when exercised, entitles the holder 
(other than the acquiring person or group) to receive common stock of the Company (or in certain 
circumstances, voting securities of the acquiring person or group) with a value of twice the Rights exercise 
price upon payment of the exercise price of the Rights.   

Peregrine will be entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.001 per Right at any time prior to a person or 
group achieving the 15% threshold.  The Rights will expire on March 16, 2016. 

Financing Under Shelf Registration Statements On Form S-3  

During fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005, we entered into various financing transactions under the 
following shelf registration statements on Form S-3, which were declared effective by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on various dates described in the table below, allowing us to issue, from time to time, 
in one or more offerings the following number of shares of our common stock to purchase shares of our 
common stock: 

Registration
Statement No. Shelf Effective Date 

Number of Shares of  
Common Stock Registered 

333-109982 October 2003 12,000,000 
333-121450 December 2004 12,000,000 
333-128322 September 2005 12,000,000 
333-132872 March 2006 15,000,000 

The following tables summarize the financing transactions we entered into during fiscal years 2005, 
2006, and 2007 under the above shelf registration statements: 

Fiscal Year 2005 

Description of Financing Transaction 

Number of 
Common Stock 
Shares Issued 

Net Issuance 
Value

Common stock purchase agreement dated March 31, 2004  3,000,000  $    3,207,000 
Common stock purchase agreement dated January 31, 2005  3,000,000  $    3,279,000 
Common stock issued to unrelated entities for research services  1,174,682  $    1,449,000 

 7,174,682  $    7,935,000 

Fiscal Year 2006 

Description of Financing Transaction 

Number of 
Common Stock 
Shares Issued 

Net Issuance 
Value

Common stock purchase agreement dated January 31, 2005  1,582,217  $    1,576,000 
Common stock purchase agreement dated May 11, 2005  3,125,000  $    2,989,000 
Common stock purchase agreement dated June 22, 2005  8,000,000  $    6,691,000 
Common stock purchase agreement dated November 23, 2005  8,000,000  $    6,719,000 
Common stock purchase agreement dated April 5, 2006  4,000,000  $    4,919,000 
Common stock issued to unrelated entities for research services  695,820   $       907,000 
  25,403,037  $  23,801,000 
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Fiscal Year 2007 

Description of Financing Transaction 

Number of 
Common Stock 
Shares Issued 

Net Issuance 
Value

Common stock purchase agreement dated June 16, 2006  9,285,714  $  12,970,000 
Common stock issued to unrelated entities for research services  862,832   $       931,000 
  10,148,546  $  13,901,000 

As of April 30, 2007, an aggregate of 5,030,634 shares of common stock were available for issuance 
under two of the shelf registration statements noted above.   

During January 2007, we filed a registration statement on Form S-3, File Number 333-139975 
(“January 2007 Shelf”) which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission, allowing 
us to issue, from time to time, in one or more offerings, shares of common stock for proceeds up to 
$30,000,000.  As of April 30, 2007, we had not issued any shares of common stock under this shelf 
registration statement. 

 On June 28, 2007, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with several institutional 
investors whereby we sold 30,000,000 shares of our common stock in exchange for gross proceeds of 
$22,500,000 under the January 2007 Shelf.  We received net proceeds of $20,900,000 after deducting 
placement agent fees and estimated costs associated with the offering.  As of June 30, 2007, we could raise up 
to an additional $7,500,000 in gross proceeds under the January 2007 Shelf registration statement.  

Shares Of Common Stock Authorized And Reserved For Future Issuance 

In accordance with our shares reserved for issuance under our Shelf registration statements, stock 
option plans and warrant agreements, we have reserved 21,642,854 shares of our common stock at April 30, 
2007 for future issuance, calculated as follows:   

Number of  
 shares reserved

Shares reserved under two effective 
shelf registration statements 5,030,634 
Options issued and outstanding 11,537,946 
Options available for future grant 4,651,409 
Warrants issued and outstanding 422,865 
Total shares reserved  21,642,854 

9. WARRANTS 

As of April 30, 2007, we had warrants outstanding to purchase up to 422,865 shares of our common 
stock at exercise prices ranging between $0.86 and $2.50 per share with a weighted average exercise price of 
$1.40 per share and expire at various dates through March 31, 2008.   
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Additional information regarding warrants outstanding as of April 30, 2007, is as follows:   

Per Share  
Exercise Price

Number of 
Warrants 

Outstanding

Weighted
Average Per 

Share Exercise 
Price Expiration Date 

$0.86  62,865 6/8/07
$1.47  350,000  3/31/08  
$2.50  10,000  3/25/08 

$0.86 - $2.50  422,865 $1.40 6/8/07 – 3/31/08 

During fiscal year 2005, we granted 350,000 warrants to a non-employee consultant for services 
provided to the Company.  The warrant has a three year term, an exercise price of $1.47 per share, expires 
March 31, 2008, and was outstanding at April 30, 2007.  We utilized the Black-Scholes valuation model to 
calculate the fair value of the warrant, which was recorded as stock-based compensation in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.  There were no warrants granted during fiscal years 2007 and 2006. 

During fiscal year 2007, warrants to purchase 6,266,788 shares of our common stock were exercised 
for net proceeds of $4,836,000.  During fiscal year 2006, warrants to purchase 812,512 shares of our common 
stock were exercised for net proceeds of $611,000.  During fiscal year 2005, warrants to purchase 2,495,414 
shares of our common stock were exercised on a combined cash and cashless basis under various transactions 
for net proceeds of $747,000 and resulted in the issuance of 2,419,790 shares of our common stock.     

During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, warrants to purchase 275,000, 5,764,631 and 324,638 
shares of common stock, respectively, expired unexercised.     

During fiscal year 2005, Swartz Private Equity, LLC (“SPE”) exercised 699,000 warrants granted in 
November 1999 in exchange for gross proceeds of $328,000, the exercise of which is included in the total 
warrant exercises during fiscal year 2005.  The warrant was originally granted on November 19, 1999 in 
consideration of a commitment by SPE to fund a $35,000,000 equity line financing over a three year term at 
an exercise price of $0.46875 per share.  This agreement was entered into and approved by the previous 
Board of Directors.  Mr. Eric Swartz, a member of our Board of Directors, maintains a 50% ownership in 
SPE.  We utilized the Black-Scholes valuation model to calculate the fair value of the warrant, which was 
recorded as stock-based compensation expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

10. SEGMENT REPORTING 

Our business is organized into two reportable operating segments.  Peregrine is engaged in the 
research and development of targeted products for the treatment of cancer and viral infections using 
monoclonal antibodies.  Avid is engaged in providing contract manufacturing of biologics and related 
services to biopharmaceutical and biotechnology businesses.   

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in Note 2.  We 
primarily evaluate the performance of our segments based on net revenues, gross profit or loss (exclusive of 
research and development expenses, selling, general and administrative expenses, and interest and other 
income/expense) and long-lived assets.  Our segment net revenues shown below are derived from transactions 
with external customers.  Our segment gross profit represents net revenues less cost of sales.  Our long-lived 
assets consist of leasehold improvements, laboratory equipment, and furniture, fixtures and computer 
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equipment and are net of accumulated depreciation. 

Segment information for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows: 

2007 2006 2005
Net Revenues:

Contract manufacturing and development of 
biologics $   3,492,000 $   3,005,000 $   4,684,000 

Products in research and development 216,000  188,000  275,000 

Total revenues, net $   3,708,000  $   3,193,000  $   4,959,000 

Gross Profit (Loss): 
Contract manufacturing and development of 

biologics $      196,000 $     (292,000) $      283,000 

Products in research and development 216,000  188,000  275,000 

Total gross profit (loss) $      412,000  $     (104,000)  $      558,000 

Research and development expense (15,876,000) (12,415,000) (11,164,000) 

Selling, general and administrative expense (6,446,000)  (6,564,000)  (5,098,000) 

Other income, net 1,114,000  2,022,000  252,000 

Net loss $(20,796,000) $(17,061,000)  $(15,452,000)

Net revenues generated from Avid during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were primarily from the 
following customers: 

2007 2006 2005
Customer revenues as a % of net revenues:

United States (customer A)  11%  73%  51% 
United States (customer B) 0%  2%  15% 
Germany (one customer) 51% 10% 0% 
Israel (one customer) 8%  1%  32% 
Australia (one customer) 14%  5%  0% 
China (one customer) 10%  0%  2% 
Other customers 6%  9%  0% 

Total customer revenues as a % of net revenues 100%  100%  100% 

Net revenues generated from Peregrine during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were primarily from 
annual license fees received under the license agreement with SuperGen, Inc. combined with the amortized 
portion of an up-front license fee received under the December 2003 license agreement with Schering A.G. 
(Note 7).
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Long-lived assets consist of the following at April 30, 2007 and April 30, 2006: 

2007 2006
Long-lived Assets, net: 

Contract manufacturing and development of biologics $   1,527,000  $   1,516,000
Products in research and development 313,000  390,000

Total long-lived assets, net $   1,840,000  $   1,906,000

11. INCOME TAXES  

The provision for income taxes consists of the following for the three years ended April 30, 2007: 

 2007  2006  2005 
Provision for federal income 

taxes at statutory rate $  (7,071,000) $  (5,801,000) $  (5,254,000) 
State income taxes, net of federal 

benefit (1,202,000) (995,000) (902,000) 
Expiration and adjustment of loss 

carryforwards 73,000      719,000       4,513,000 
Change in valuation allowance 8,132,000 6,048,000 1,628,000 
Increase of effective tax rate for 

net state deferred tax asset - - -
Other, net  68,000  29,000  15,000 
Income tax (expense) benefit    $            -    $            -    $            - 

 Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts for income tax purposes.  Significant 
components of our deferred tax assets at April 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows: 

 2007  2006 
    
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 55,756,000   $ 48,147,000  
Stock-based compensation  2,067,000   1,676,000 
General business and research and development credits  118,000   118,000 
Deferred revenue  424,000   233,000 
Accrued liabilities  1,067,000   1,126,000 
    
Total deferred tax assets  59,432,000   51,300,000 
Less valuation allowance (59,432,000)  (51,300,000) 
Net deferred tax assets $            -  $            - 

At April 30, 2007, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards of 
approximately $150,100,000 and $118,000, respectively.  The net operating loss carryforwards expire in 
fiscal years 2008 through 2026.  The net operating losses of $2,986,000 applicable to Vascular Targeting 
Technologies, our wholly-owned subsidiary, can only be offset against future income of that subsidiary.  The 
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tax credit carryforwards begin to expire in fiscal year 2008 and are available to offset the future taxes or our 
subsidiary.  We also have state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $80,900,000 at April 30, 
2007, which begin to expire in fiscal year 2008.   

 Due to ownership changes in our common stock, there may be limitations on our ability to utilize our 
net operating loss carryforwards in the future.   

12.  BENEFIT PLAN 

During fiscal year 1997, we adopted a 401(k) benefit plan (the “Plan”) for all regular employees who 
are at least the age of 21, work at least 25 hours per week and have three or more months of continuous 
service.  The Plan provides for employee contributions of up to 100% of their compensation or a maximum of 
$15,500.  We made no matching contributions to the Plan since its inception.  

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 On June 28, 2007, we sold 30,000,000 shares under a Securities Purchase Agreement with several 
institutional investors in exchange for net proceeds of $20,900,000 (Note 8). 

14. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

Selected quarterly financial information for each of the two most recent fiscal years is as follows: 

Quarter Ended 
April

30, 
January

 31, 
October 

31, 
         July  

31, 
April

30, 
January

 31, 
October  

31, 
     July  

31, 
 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 

Net  revenues .............. $ 2,240,000 $    363,000 $    684,000 $    421,000 $    901,000 $ 1,528,000 $    556,000 $   208,000 

Cost of sales………...  $ 2,049,000  $    223,000 $    494,000  $    530,000 (a) $ 1,477,000 (b) $ 1,088,000 $    428,000 $   304,000 (c)

Gross profit (loss)…... $    191,000 $    140,000 $    190,000    $   (109,000) $   (576,000) $    440,000 $    128,000    $    (96,000) 

Operating expenses ....   $ 5,630,000 $ 5,420,000 $ 5,590,000 $ 5,682,000 $ 4,934,000 $ 4,922,000 $ 4,814,000 $ 4,309,000 

Net loss ....................... $(5,244,000) $(5,025,000) $(5,070,000) $(5,457,000) $(5,038,000) $(3,113,000) $(4,571,000) $(4,339,000) 

Basic and diluted loss 
per common  share ...... $     (0.02) $     (0.03) $     (0.03) $     (0.03) $     (0.02) $     (0.02) $     (0.03) $     (0.03) 

______________ 
 (a)   Cost of sales for the quarter ended July 31, 2006 includes the write-off of unusable work-in-process inventory 

combined with an estimated contract loss provision associated with one customer, which in the aggregate totaled 
$208,000.    

(b)   Cost of sales for the quarter ended April 30, 2006 includes the write-off of unusable work-in-process inventory 
generated during the quarter ended April 30, 2006 in the amount of $698,000 combined with a contract loss 
provision associated with one customer in the amount of $184,000. 

(c)   Cost of sales for the quarter ended July 31, 2005 includes additional costs of $99,000 incurred during the quarter 
ended July 31, 2005 to provide additional data to support required studies for current customers. 
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 Balance at Charged  Balance 
 Beginning to costs and  at end 

Description    of period expenses  Deductions of period

Valuation reserve for note and other 
receivables for the year ended April 30, 2005 $   1,645,000   $           -    $                       (64,000)  $ 1,581,000  

Valuation reserve for note and other 
receivables for the year ended April 30, 2006 $   1,581,000   $           -    $ (1,581,000)  $            -   

Valuation reserve for note and other 
receivables for the year ended April 30, 2007 $            -   $           -    $            -   $            -   
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PEREGRINE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. 
Subsidiaries of Registrant 

During January 2002, the Company announced the formation of Avid Bioservices, Inc., a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

 On April 24, 1997, the Company acquired its wholly owned subsidiary, Vascular Targeting 
Technologies, Inc. (formerly known as Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.). 

 On August 28, 2006, the Company established a wholly owned subsidiary, Peregrine (Beijing) 
Pharmaceutical Technology Ltd. in the Haidian District, Beijing, Peoples Republic of China. 



EXHIBIT 23.1 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-130271, 
333-121334, 333-106385, 333-57046, and 333-17513; Form S-3 Nos. 333-139975, 333-132872, 333-128322, 
333-121450, 333-109982, 333-103965, 333-99157, 333-71086, and 333-40716) of Peregrine 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. of our reports dated July 9, 2007, with respect to the consolidated financial statements 
and schedule of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. management's assessment of 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc., included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the 
year ended April 30, 2007. 

        /s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Orange County, California  
July 9, 2007 



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I, Steven W. King, certify that: 

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report; 

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared; 

b)     Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

c)      Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a)             All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and   

b)            Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Dated:  July 9, 2007                                                                Signed: /s/ STEVEN W. KING  
                                                                                                              Steven W. King 

President and Chief Executive Officer   



EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

I, Paul J. Lytle, certify that: 

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report; 

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated 
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is 
being prepared; 

b)     Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

c)      Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting; and 

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a)             All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and   

b)            Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Dated:  July 9, 2007                                                                 Signed: /s/ PAUL J. LYTLE 
                                                                                                              Paul J. Lytle 

Chief Financial Officer 

                                                                                                     



EXHIBIT 32 

CERTIFICATIONS OF 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

            I, Steven W. King, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. on Form 10-K for 
the year ended April 30, 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, 
Inc. on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of 
Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

By: /s/ STEVEN W. KING 
Name: Steven W. King 
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer  
Date: July 9, 2007 

            I, Paul J. Lytle, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. on Form 10-K for the 
year ended April 30, 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report of Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, 
Inc. on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of 
Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

By: /s/ PAUL J. LYTLE 
Name: Paul J. Lytle 
Title: Chief Financial Officer 
Date: July 9, 2007 

   
 A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Peregrine 
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and will be retained by Peregrine Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and furnished to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 

 This Certification is being furnished pursuant to Rule 15(d) and shall not be deemed “filed” for 
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78r), or otherwise subject to the liability of that 
section. This Certification shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the 
Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by 
reference. 
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